AT A MEETING of the Cabinet of HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL held remotely on Friday, 15th May, 2020

Chairman: * Councillor Keith Mans

- * Councillor Rob Humby
- * Councillor Roz Chadd
- * Councillor Liz Fairhurst
- * Councillor Judith Grajewski
- * Councillor Edward Heron

- * Councillor Andrew Joy
- * Councillor Stephen Reid
- * Councillor Patricia Stallard
- * Councillor Seán Woodward

Also present with the agreement of the Chairman: Councillors Bennison, Collett, Glen and House.

176. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

All Members were present and no apologies were noted

177. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were mindful that where they believed they had a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter considered at the meeting they must declare that interest at the time of the relevant debate and, having regard to the circumstances described in Part 3, Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's Members' Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter was discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the Code. Furthermore Members were mindful that where they believed they had a Personal interest in a matter being considered at the meeting they considered whether such interest should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 5 of the Code, considered whether it was appropriate to leave the meeting whilst the matter was discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with the Code.

178. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed and agreed

179. **DEPUTATIONS**

No requests to make a deputation had been received.

180. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman welcomed Members to Hampshire County Council's first remote meeting. He recognised the extent of the Covid-19 crisis and its impact on Hampshire and the world and the importance of joint working to resolve the crisis.

181. AN EARLY REVIEW OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL'S RESPONSE TO THE COVID 19 CRISIS

Cabinet considered a report of the Chief Executive regarding the County Council's response to the Covid-19 crisis.

With the agreement of the Chairman, Councillor House addressed Cabinet, welcoming the report, thanking HCC staff for their recent efforts and highlighting the common issues faced by all local authorities.

With the agreement of the Chairman, Councillor Porter addressed Cabinet, highlighting the challenges of re-opening schools and the pressure on childcare setting. She welcomed the support that had been available for Members to continue to operate in their communities.

The report was introduced and key corporate and departmental issues were highlighted, acknowledging the rapidly changing nature of the crisis. The benefit of Public Health being integrated in the County Council was noted, in particular the relationship with the Isle of Wight Public Health and the development of the track and trace programme. It was confirmed that the pandemic in Hampshire matched the national picture of slowly reducing from the peak.

Cabinet heard that the Director of Economy, Transport and Environment was leading on the recovery phase for the County Council. He provided some initial thoughts on this, noting that it would run alongside the response phase and that the pace of recovery would be governed by the progress of the virus. The split between national and local drivers for recovery was recognised and the importance of strong community engagement and of innovation in areas such as transport detailed.

Members welcomed the report and acknowledged that the County Council must do everything possible to reduce the spread of the virus. The hard work of HCC officers across all departments was recognised and a number of prominent examples were cited. The role and benefit of partnership working was highlighted and Members noted how communities had come together in tackling the impact of the virus.

The recommendations set out in the report were considered and agreed. A decision record is attached to these minutes.

182. COVID-19 FINANCIAL IMPACT

Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources regarding the financial impact of the Covid-19 crisis.

With the agreement of the Chairman, Councillor House addressed Cabinet, highlighting the promises of the Secretary of State to provide financial support, the severe impact across local government and urging the County Council to share financial data with the LGA to contribute to the national picture.

The report was introduced and it was explained that it gave the first snapshot of the financial consequences of the crisis. It was confirmed that data would be provided to MHCLG and shared with the LGA. The unfunded three month shortfall of £21.6 million was highlighted and it was noted that this was expected to increase by £18.5 million for each subsequent month. Members heard that if these cost pressures remained unfunded then the impact on the County Council would have to be met from reserves, including from the pension fund windfall. The impact on the markets of a recession made further windfalls from the pension fund less likely. These pressures came on top of the existing financial stresses planned for in the Transformation programme.

Cabinet welcomed the report as providing robust documentation of the full financial consequence of the crisis. Members agreed with holding the Government to their commitment of support and felt that this should be based on the full financial impact on the Council.

The recommendations in the report were considered and agreed. A decision record is attached to these minutes.

183. COVID-19: TEMPORARY CHANGES TO THE COUNTY COUNCIL'S DUTIES UNDER THE CARE ACT 2014

Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Adults' Health and Care regarding temporary changes to the County Council's duties under the Care Act 2014.

The report was introduced including an overview of the work underway within Adults Services and the options within the legislation to enact the Care Act easements. The process of doing so was outlined and it was confirmed that this was a temporary position and would be used as a last resort and not a blanket approach. It was furthermore clarified that the recommendations were being made pro-actively and there was no current expectation of the delegated authority being required.

Cabinet welcomed the report and considered and agreed the recommendations. A decision record is attached to these minutes.

184. **DOMESTIC VIOLENCE**

Cabinet considered a report of the Chief Executive regarding specific concerns and activities related to domestic abuse and violence during the Covid-19 crisis.

With reference to the report, the background and key concerns were outlined. The full picture of the impact on children was not likely to be clear until after lockdown, when it was expected that referrals would increase.

Members welcomed the report, noting the importance of the issue and asking that a further update be presented sooner than six months.

The recommendations in the report were considered and agreed. A decision record is attached to these minutes.

185. THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE AND CRIME PANELS (CORONAVIRUS) (FLEXIBILITY OF LOCAL AUTHORITY AND POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETINGS) (ENGLAND AND WALES) REGULATIONS 2020 - AMENDMENT TO STANDING ORDERS AND EXECUTIVE PROCEDURES

Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Transformation and Governance regarding the impact of new legislation as a result of the Covid-19 crisis.

In introduction to the report, the Chairman proposed an update to the recommendations in the report to: delete existing recommendations c and e. He also proposed a new recommendation: "Cabinet requests that the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Group Leaders, undertakes a review of the County Council's Executive decision making process, and that a further report on the outcome of the review is brought to Cabinet after the Covid-19 crisis"

With the agreement of the Chairman, Councillor House addressed Cabinet, welcoming the updated recommendations, noting the success of remote meetings and the importance for transparency at this time.

The revised recommendations were considered and agreed. A decision record is attached to these minutes.

186. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED:

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting as it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information within Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, being information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding the information). which should not be disclosed for the reasons set out in the report.

187. FARNBOROUGH INTERNATIONAL LIMITED - INTEREST RATE DEFERRAL AND LOAN REPAYMENT TIMETABLE - EXEMPT

Cabinet considered an exempt report of the Director of Corporate Resources regarding Farnborough International Limited.

With reference to the exempt report, the context of the cancellation of this year's airshow and the consequential financial pressure was outlined to Cabinet. It was confirmed that any adjustments to the loan repayment to the County Council would still result in full repayment.

Cabinet noted the pressures on the aviation industry and that an adjustment to the loan repayment timetable would assist with the viability of the airshow and therefore be of benefit to the wider north-Hampshire economy.

The recommendations in the report were considered and agreed. A decision record is attached to these minutes.

188. BLACKBUSHE AIRPORT: PROGRESS OF JUDICIAL REVIEW AND ASSOCIATED POTENTIAL COSTS

Cabinet considered an exempt report of the Director of Culture, Communities and Business Services and the Head of Law and Governance regarding Blackbushe Airport.

The background and progress of the judicial review was set out alongside the next steps and potential financial implications. The national significance of the case for future planning matters involving common land was highlighted.

With the agreement of the Chairman, Councillor Collett addressed Cabinet, setting out his involvement as the local Member and asking that the recommendations be supported.

The recommendations in the report were considered and agreed. A decision record is attached to these minutes.

Chairman,